
 Ballina Shire "C" Ward Committee Minutes 8 March 2012 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Ballina Shire Council   “C” Ward Committee minutes 
Thursday 8 March 2012  Page 1 

 

1. Attendance and Apologies 

 
Cr David Wright (Chair) 
Cr Ben Smith 
Cr Keith Johnson 
Cr Phillip Silver, Mayor 
Geoff Limbert – Alstonville Ratepayers Association 
Sandra Denison – Alstonville Wollongbar Chamber of Commerce 
Barry Jeffress - Alstonville RSL/Tuckombil Landcare 
Lois Wright - Village Green Movement (attending instead of Bob Cooper) 
Les Wiles - Alstonville Lions Club 
Mal Johnson - Ballina Environment Society 
Elva Fitzell - Alstonville Rotary Club 
Eoin Johnston - Rous Mill Ratepayers  
Allan Hart, Rotary Club of Ballina on Richmond  
Pat Carney - Wardell Progress Association 
Alison Draper – Alsonville Plateau Historical Society 
 
Staff in Attendance 
 
Jillian Pratten 
 
Apologies 

 
Sheila Aveling - Tintenbar School of Arts 
Brian Hill - Alstonville RSL 
Richard Lutze - Combined Services Club 
Jane Gardiner - Alstonville Plateau Historical Society 
 
Others in attendance 
 
Justine Lucas, Daniel Lucas 

2. Declarations of Interest 

 
Nil 

3. Confirmation of Minutes – 10 November 2011 

 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 10 November 2011 were 
accepted as a true and correct record. 

4. Business arising from Minutes – 10 November 2011 

 
(a) Alstonville Community Preschool Update 
 
Information noted. 
 



 Ballina Shire "C" Ward Committee Minutes 8 March 2012 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Ballina Shire Council   “C” Ward Committee minutes 
Thursday 8 March 2012  Page 2 

 

(b) Disabled Parking 
 
Cr David Wright thanked John Truman for visiting Alstonville to discuss the 
disabled parking issue. 
 
Information noted 

5. Alstonville Main Street Upgrade - Update 

 
Cr David Wright advised that the Essential Energy Poles to be removed this 
week. This would then enable paving in the Main Street to be finished. 
 
Cr David Wright advised that pavers used in the Main Street upgrade meet 
and exceed slip safety requirements.  

 
Concerns were expressed regarding businesses who hose off their premises 
and the material washed off makes the pavers slippery.  
 
Request made to improve cleaning of picnic tables and bin tops and these 
need daily cleaning. Jillian Pratten to check on current cleaning service level. 

6. Elizabeth Ann Brown Park Masterplan 

The revised and amended Elizabeth Ann Brown Park Masterplan was noted. 
 
The meeting was advised that funding had been received to install three solar 
lights in the park to improve security. 
 
Mural is being considered for the Essential Energy box. 

7. Installation of Local Information Boards/Shelters 

 
Pat Carney asked why Wardell did not get a Local Information Board. 
 
The meeting was advised that the boards being installed were to replace 
existing information boards and Wardell did not have a board. 
 
Pat Carney advised that Wardell needed an information board and requested 
one be installed. 
 
The proposed location for the Information Board in Freeborne Park was 
discussed and the meeting agreed to endorse the location. 
 

9. Council Documents on Exhibition 

 
The Committee noted the list of documents recently exhibited by Council. 



 Ballina Shire "C" Ward Committee Minutes 8 March 2012 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Ballina Shire Council   “C” Ward Committee minutes 
Thursday 8 March 2012  Page 3 

 

10. Items raised by members of the Committee 

 
Alstonville Farmers Market Proposal 
 
Justine Lucas made a presentation to the meeting and the presentation is 
attached to the minutes.  
 
The meeting was advised that at present there was no Development 
Application or formal process in place for the market and so the meeting 
noted the information received in the presentation. 
 
Acknowledgement Sign  
 
The meeting was advised that the sign acknowledging Service Clubs who 
made a contribution to the cost of installing the BBQ in Elizabeth Ann Brown 
Park was in place. 
 
Main Street Plants 
 
Meeting was advised that dead plants in the Main Street Upgrade plantings 
would be replaced as required and in particular the plants missing from the 
roadside planting adjacent to the round-about that were removed as a result 
of works carried out by Essential Energy. 
 
Graffiti  
 
The recent graffiti incident in Alstonville was discussed and Cr David Wright 
advised that four or five young offenders have been identified and the 
information passed onto the Police.  
 
The committee voiced their disappointment at the level of damage done and 
the cost of the damage. 
 
The meeting agreed to invite the local Alstonville Police to attend the next C 
Ward meeting. 
 
Gap Road Vandalism  
 
The meeting was advised that the Alstonville Croquet Club had experienced a 
break in recently and it was suggested that lighting of the area may be 
helpful. 
 
Jillian Pratten advised that the Hockey Club amenity block had been broken 
in to and the damage repaired. Council was not aware of a break in to the 
Croquet shed nor has consideration been given to lighting the area. 
 
Community Survey  
 
Les Wiles suggested that a funding submission should be put into the next 
budget for a community survey for Alstonville/Wollongbar area.  
 



 Ballina Shire "C" Ward Committee Minutes 8 March 2012 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Ballina Shire Council   “C” Ward Committee minutes 
Thursday 8 March 2012  Page 4 

 

The meeting was advised that Ballina Council had previously carried out a 
Community Aspirations survey and may carry out another such survey in the 
future. It was suggested that Chamber of Commerce or interested parties 
prepare a list of questions and also establish what information that would like 
to be gained from such a survey and forward this to Council for consideration 
for inclusion in the next Community Aspirations survey. 
 
Wardell 
 
Pat Carney asked if the fence around Wardell tennis club was to be replaced. 
Jillian Pratten advised that there was currently no funding allocated to this 
work. With the removal of the old play equipment Pat was asked if a fence 
was still required. Pat advised probably not and perhaps the fence should be 
removed rather than replaced. 
 
Rous Mill Rate Payers Association 
 
Eoin Johnston asked where the wooden benches that were made by students 
were.  Were they to be re-installed and relocated? 
 
Eoin passed on thanks from the Rous Mill Rate Payers Association as all six 
requests had been attended to.  
 

12. Next Meeting 

 
The next meeting is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 10 May 2012 at 7.30 
pm  

 

MEETING CLOSURE 
 
8.35 pm 
 



 Ballina Shire "C" Ward Committee Minutes 8 March 2012 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Ballina Shire Council   “C” Ward Committee minutes 
Thursday 8 March 2012  Page 5 

 

 


